
    13 0 6th STREET WEST   PHONE (406) 892-4391 
     ROOM A    FAX (406) 892-4413 
     COLUMBIA FALLS, MT 59912      

AGENDA 
MONDAY, AUGUST 1, 2016 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS CITY HALL  

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE – 6:30 P.M. 

1. Claims Review (Barnhart, Fisher, Karper) 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 
 
1.   CALL TO ORDER 
     A.  Roll Call 
      B.   Pledge of Allegiance 
  
 

2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA **1-4 
 
 
3.   CONSENT AGENDA: 

*A. Approval of Claims - $ 119,469.72  - August 1, 2016 **5-16 

*B.  Approval of Payroll Claims - $ 63,622.19  – July 29, 2016 **17-18 
*C.  Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – July 18, 2016 **19-26 
*D.  Approval of Interlocal Agreement between City of Columbia Falls **27-35 and 
the City of Whitefish for Police Administrative Services and authorize City Manager 
to sign. 
 

 
4.  VISITORS/PUBLIC COMMENT: (Items not on agenda) 
     
 
5.  NOTICES OF HEARINGS/PUBLIC HEARINGS:   **36 
   
  *A.  Public Hearing: The Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board will hold a 

public hearing for the following item at their regular meeting on Tuesday, July 12th at 
6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers of City Hall, 130 6th Street West, Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  The Columbia Falls City Council will hold a subsequent hearing on 
August 1, 2016 starting at 7:00 p.m. in the same location. 



 

Request for a Zone Change in the Columbia Falls Zoning Jurisdiction:  **37-53 

Patrick W. Rose and Salvador Maldonado are requesting to amend the zoning 
district map for three properties in the Columbia Falls Zoning Jurisdiction.  The 
applicants in total own approximately 1.7 acres of property that is currently zoned 
CB-2 and R-4.  The Rose property is the former location of convenience store and 
gas station located at the corner of 8th Avenue E.N. and Railroad Street.  The 
Maldonado property is adjacent to the Rose property and located directly east.  
The applicants are requesting a zone change to CRA-1 (Multi-Family) so that they 
may construct multi-family rental apartments.  Multi-family structures in excess of 
two units require a conditional use permit from the City.  The properties are 
described as Tract B of the Crescent Amended Plat excluding MDOT right-of-way 
along with Assessors Tracts 1A and 1AD all in Section 9, T30N, R20W, P.M.M, 
Flathead County.   

 

 a. Adopt Staff Report CZC-16-02 as findings of fact. 

 b. Approve, amend or deny the zone change (See Ordinances below) 

 

Request for Conditional Use Permit:  **54-71 

 A request by Patrick W. Rose for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to convert the 
old convenience store and gas station located at 673 8th Avenue E.N to a three plex 
apartment building with garages and preserve the existing mangers living 
quarters on the property.  The applicant is also requesting a zone change to CRA-1 
(Multi-Family Residential).  The CRA-1 zoning designation requires a CUP to 
construct a three-plex or greater within the zoning district.  The properties are 
described as Tract B of the Crescent Amended Plat excluding MDOT right-of-way 
in Section 9, T30N, R20W, P.M.M, Flathead County. 

 Persons may testify at the hearing or submit written comments prior to the meeting.  
Written comment may be sent to Columbia Falls City Hall, Attention: Susan Nicosia, 
City Manager, 130 6th Street West, Room A, Columbia Falls, MT 59912.  For more 
information call Eric Mulcahy, Columbia Falls City Planner at 755-6481. 

 

  a. Adopt Staff Report CCU-16-01 as findings of fact. 

  b.  Approve, amend or deny the Conditional Use Permit (See Resolutions below) 

 

*B. Public Hearing: **72 Notice is hereby given, that the City Council of the City of 
Columbia Falls, Montana, will hold public hearings beginning on August 1, 2016 at 7:00 
p.m. in the Columbia Falls City Hall, 130-6th Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana, for 
the following purposes: 
 



Preliminary Budget 
Presentation and consideration of the preliminary budget for fiscal year beginning July 
1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017. This hearing will be continued until final adoption of 
the budget. 
  

Special Assessments 
Consideration of the adoption of the Street Lighting District and Street Maintenance 
District assessments for FY2016/2017. Council will hear any objections to the final 
adoption of the resolution levying special assessments for FY 2016/2017. Special 
Assessments are estimated as follows: 
 
  Street Lighting District  $  40,000 
 
  Street Maintenance District $301,000 
 
Individual property payment schedules are available for inspection ten (10) days from 
this notice, in the office of the City Clerk, 130 6th Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana, 
during regular hours Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. 
 

Permissive Medical Levy 
Consideration of adoption on the proposed tax levy to fund health insurance premium 
contributions for group benefits beyond the amount of contributions in effect on June 
30, 1999. The actual mills for consideration will be made available upon receipt of the 
certified tax valuation for the year. 
 
Taxpayers are encouraged to attend the hearings and give written or oral comments on 
any or all of the budget-related items. Written comments may be mailed to the City 
Clerk, 130 6th Street West, Room A, Columbia Falls, Montana, 59912. Questions 
regarding the proposed items can be made by contacting City Manager Susan Nicosia at 
892-4391. 
 
 

6.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None        
 
 
7.  NEW BUSINESS: None 
      
 
8.  ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS: 
  *A. RESOLUTION # 1728 - **73 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 

Columbia Falls, Montana, Approving the Sale of Lot Four of Cedar Creek North 
Subdivision, Flathead County, Montana 

 
 *B. SECOND AND FINAL READING – ORDINANCE #764 **74-75 - An Ordinance 

of the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, Montana, Changing The Zoning 
Classification From CSAG-10 Suburban Agricultural To CR-1 Suburban Residential 



For Certain Property in the Columbia Falls Zoning District, Described as Lot 1 of 
Subdivision #193 Located in Section 20, Township 30 North, Range 20 West, P.M.M., 
Flathead County, Montana, More Particularly Described as 3985 Columbia Falls 
Stage Road. 

 
 *C. FIRST READING – ORDINANCE # 765 **76-77- An Ordinance of the City 

Council of The City Of Columbia Falls, Montana, Changing The Zoning 
Classification From CB-2 (General Business) and CR-4 (Urban Residential) To CRA-1 
Residential Apartment for Certain Property in the Columbia Falls Zoning District, 
Described as  Tract B of the Crescent Amended Plat Excluding MDOT Right-Of-Way 
and Assessors Tracts 1A and 1AD all Located in Section 9, Township 30 North, 
Range 20 West, P.M.M., Flathead County, Montana, More Particularly Described as 
673 8th Avenue E.N. and 810 Railroad Street, Columbia Falls. 

 
*D.  RESOLUTION # 1729 - **78-79 A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Columbia Falls, Montana, Approving an Application for a Conditional Use Permit 
by Patrick W. Rose to Convert the Former Convenience Store and Gas Station into a 
Three Plex Apartment and Maintain the Existing Managers Unit on Tract B of the 
Crescent Amended Plat Excluding MDOT Right-Of-Way in Section 9, Township 20 
North, Range 20 West, P.M.M., Flathead County. 

 
 
10.  REPORTS/BUSINESS FROM MAYOR & COUNCIL 
    
      
11.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT  
 
     
12.  CITY MANAGER REPORT 

 *A. Manager’s Update  **80-81 

 
 

13.  MISCELLANEOUS/REPORTS: 
     *A.  INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE - List available for Review **82 

 
      

14.  ADJOURN 
 
 
Next Scheduled Meetings: 
Council – Regular Meeting – August 15, 2016 
Planning Board – to be determined 
 
 
 *Attached 































CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 1 

 
Regular Meeting - Transact Routine Business 
 
Mayor Barnhart called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. with roll call as 
follows:  
   
     PRESENT:   Mayor Barnhart 
     COUNCIL:  Petersen, Shepard,  Fisher, Lovering and Piper 
     ABSENT:     Karper 
 

 
 
 
ROLL CALL 

Also present were City Manager Nicosia, City Clerk Staaland, City Attorney 
Breck, Fire Chief Hagen and City Planner Mulcahy.   
 
Pledge of Allegiance 

 
 

 
PLEDGE 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
Mayor Barnhart requested a motion to approve the agenda. Councilman 
Shepard moved to approve the agenda, second by Councilman Piper, and the 
motion carried unanimously. 
 

AGENDA  
APPROVAL 

CONSENT AGENDA: 
Councilman Petersen moved to approve the consent agenda noting that all 
claims appeared to be in order, second by Councilman Shepard. Motion 
carried with Council voting as follows:  AYES: Fisher, Lovering, Petersen, 
Piper, Shepard, and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT:   Karper. 

A. Approval of Claims - $131,404.55 - July 18, 2016 
                        $  80,081.42 – July 5, 2016 
B.  Approval of Payroll Claims - $132,133.84 – July 15, 2016 
                                                          $  15,511.04 – June 30th Quarterlies 
C.  Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes – June 20, 2016 
D.  Approval of Employee Assistance Program Service Agreement with 
Sapphire Resource Connection for the 2017 FY and authorize City 
Manager to sign. 
 

VISITORS/PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
 
APPOINTMENTS: 
A.  Probationary Volunteer Firefighter – Dillon Thorsteinson 
Fire Chief Hagen recommends Dillon Thorsteinson as a Probationary 
Volunteer Firefighter.  
 
Councilman Fisher motioned to accept Dillon Thorsteinson as Probationary 
Volunteer Firefighter, second by Councilman Shepard and the motion 
passed. City Clerk Staaland administered the oath of office. 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 
APPROVAL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VISITOR/PUBLIC 
COMMENTS 
 
APPOINTMENTS-
Probationary 
Firefighter 
Thorsteinson 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 2 

 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/NOTICES: 
A. Public Hearing:  The Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board will 
hold a public hearing for the following item at their regular meeting on 
Tuesday, June 14th at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of City Hall, 130 6th 
Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana.  The Columbia Falls City Council will 
hold a subsequent hearing on July 18, 2016 starting at 7:00 p.m. in the same 
location. 
 
Request for a Zone Change in the Columbia Falls Zoning Jurisdiction:   
William T. Giddeon is requesting to amend the zoning district map on a 
portion of property in the Columbia Falls Zoning Jurisdiction.  The applicant 
owns 18.21 acres of land but approximately one acre is not located in the 
Columbia Falls zoning Jurisdiction and is not zoned by the City or County.  
The zone change request only affects the 17+/- acres that are zoned.  The 
property is currently zoned SAG-10 but is adjacent to other R-1 properties 
and therefore, the applicant is requesting R-1 zoning for his acreage.  The 
property is described as that portion of Lot 1 of Subdivision 193 in Section 20, 
T30N, R20W, P.M.M., located north of the south boundary of the NE1/4 
NE1/4 line.  The property is addressed as 3985 Columbia Falls Stage in 
Columbia Falls.   
 
City Planner Eric Mulcahy presented staff report CZC-16-01 for the zone 
change request from Mr. Giddeon. Mulcahy reviewed the zoning conditions 
and noted there was one neighbor that attended the Planning Board meeting 
in favor of the rezone. Councilman Piper recused himself from the hearing as 
he has an interest in the area. 
 
Mayor Barnhart opened the Public Hearing at 7:12 p.m.  
 
Mr. Giddeon said he would like to rezone his property for possible selling 
purposes. 
 
Mayor Barnhart closed the Public Hearing at 7:13 p.m. 
 
Councilman Fisher motioned to adopt staff report CZC-16-01 as findings of 
fact, second by Councilman Shepard and the motion passed with all 
members voting in favor.  

  
Councilman Shepard made motion to approve the Zone Change, second by 
Councilman Fisher and the motion carried with all members voting in favor. 
 

 
 
 
PUBLIC 
HEARINGS-
Giddeon Zone 
Change 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 3 

 
 
B.  Notice of Hearing: The Columbia Falls City-County Planning Board will 
hold a public hearing for the following item at their regular meeting on 
Tuesday, July 12th at 6:30 p.m. at the Council Chambers of City Hall, 130 6th  
Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana.  The Columbia Falls City Council will 
hold a subsequent hearing on August 1, 2016 starting at 7:00 p.m. in the same 
location. 
 
Request for a Zone Change in the Columbia Falls Zoning Jurisdiction:   
Patrick W. Rose and Salvador Maldonado are requesting to amend the 
zoning district map for three properties in the Columbia Falls Zoning 
Jurisdiction.  The applicants in total own approximately 1.7 acres of property 
that is currently zoned CB-2 and R-4.  The Rose property is the former 
location of convenience store and gas station located at the corner of 8th 
Avenue E.N. and Railroad Street.  The Maldonado property is adjacent to the 
Rose property and located directly east.  The applicants are requesting a zone 
change to CRA-1 (Multi-Family) so that they may construct multi-family 
rental apartments.  Multi-family structures in excess of two units require a 
conditional use permit from the City.  The properties are described as Tract B 
of the Crescent Amended Plat excluding MDOT right-of-way along with 
Assessors Tracts 1A and 1AD all in Section 9, T30N, R20W, P.M.M, Flathead 
County.   
 
Request for Conditional Use Permit: 
A request by Patrick W. Rose for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to convert 
the old convenience store and gas station located at 673 8th Avenue E.N to a 
three plex apartment building with garages and preserve the existing 
mangers living quarters on the property.  The applicant is also requesting a 
zone change to CRA-1 (Multi-Family Residential).  The CRA-1 zoning 
designation requires a CUP to construct a three-plex or greater within the 
zoning district.  The properties are described as Tract B of the Crescent 
Amended Plat excluding MDOT right-of-way in Section 9, T30N, R20W, 
P.M.M, Flathead County. 
Persons may testify at the hearing or submit written comments prior to the 
meeting.  Written comment may be sent to Columbia Falls City Hall, 
Attention: Susan Nicosia, City Manager, 130 6th Street West, Room A, 
Columbia Falls, MT 59912.  For more information call Eric Mulcahy, 
Columbia Falls City Planner at 755-6481. 

 
C.  Notice of Hearing: Notice is hereby given, that the City Council of the 
City of Columbia Falls, Montana, will hold public hearings beginning on 
August 1, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the Columbia Falls City Hall, 130-6th Street 
West, Columbia Falls, Montana, for the following purposes: 

 
PUBLIC 
HEARINGS-
Request for a zone 
change-Rose & 
Maldonado 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CONDITIONAL 
USE PERMIT 
REQUEST-Rose & 
Maldonado 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTICE OF 
PUBLIC HEARING-
Budget FY 16-17 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 4 

 
Preliminary Budget 

 
Presentation and consideration of the preliminary budget for fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2016 and ending June 30, 2017. This hearing will be 
continued until final adoption of the budget. 
  

Special Assessments 
Consideration of the adoption of the Street Lighting District and Street 
Maintenance District assessments for FY2016/2017. Council will hear any 
objections to the final adoption of the resolution levying special assessments 
for FY 2016/2017. Special Assessments are estimated as follows: 
  Street Lighting District  $  40,000 
 
  Street Maintenance District $301,000 
 
Individual property payment schedules are available for inspection ten (10) 
days from this notice, in the office of the City Clerk, 130 6th Street West, 
Columbia Falls, Montana, during regular hours Monday through Friday, 8:00 
AM to 5:00 PM. 

 
Permissive Medical Levy 

Consideration of adoption on the proposed tax levy to fund health insurance 
premium contributions for group benefits beyond the amount of 
contributions in effect on June 30, 1999. The actual mills for consideration will 
be made available upon receipt of the certified tax valuation for the year. 
 
Taxpayers are encouraged to attend the hearings and give written or oral 
comments on any or all of the budget-related items. Written comments may 
be mailed to the City Clerk, 130 6th Street West, Room A, Columbia Falls, 
Montana, 59912. Questions regarding the proposed items can be made by 
contacting City Manager Susan Nicosia at 892-4391. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
None. 
 

UNFINISHED 
BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS: 
A. Adopt updated Job Description – Police Chief 

 
City Manager Nicosia reported that the Public Safety Committee met to 
update the Police Chief job description which was adopted in 2000. The 
updated job description has been reviewed by the City Attorney as well as 
MMIA for certain requirements. The Public Safety Committee recommends 
Council approve the updated job description. Councilman Fisher motioned to 

 
NEW BUSINESS-
Police Chief Job 
Description 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 5 

adopt the updated Police Chief job description, second by Councilman 
Lovering. 
 
Councilman Shepard asked why there are no requirements for marksmanship.  
Nicosia said it is included in the POST certification per the State. Shepard  
asked if the chief is required to patrol. Nicosia said yes that is correct, 
referring to language in the job description. Shepard asked if this is the time to 
require the Chief of Police to wear a uniform at all times. Nicosia replied yes 
this would be the time to add it as a requirement. Mayor Barnhart said our 
Fire Chief is always in uniform and agrees with Councilman Shepard that the 
Police Chief be in uniform as well. Nicosia said she will add it in the 
appropriate section on the job description.  
 
Motion passed unanimously. Nicosia noted that the position will be 
advertised as soon as possible. 

 
A. Award Bid – Youth Recreation Grant – Knife River 
City Manager said the city was awarded $88,000 in grant money with the 
initial low bid coming in from Knife River at $97,450. The estimated project 
increased due to the increase in drainage, landscaping and striping. City staff 
met with Columbia Falls Baseball Association and Knife River and approved a 
revised plan that meets the grant requirements as well as the DNRC 
landscaping and drainage requirements. In the revised plan, CFBA is 
responsible for the landscaping and striping portions of the project. The 
revised bid from Knife River is $86,450. Final revisions have been submitted to 
DNRC for their final approval.  
  
Councilman Piper motioned to award the bid of $86,450 from Knife River to 
complete the project, upon final approval by DNRC, second by Councilman 
Shepard with Council voting as follows. AYES: Lovering, Petersen, Piper, 
Shepard, Fisher and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Karper. 

 
C. Approve 2017-2019 Collective Bargaining Agreement – Teamsters Union 
Local  No. 2 
Teamsters have ratified the agreement with a 3 year term of 3% wage increase 
as well as the following:  change in insurance premiums on the city 
contribution for family coverage from $1,390/month to $1,560/month to 
move closer to the percentages of the single and spouse/child. We also 
increased the clothing allowance from $700 to $800 and clarified the benefit of 
the clothing allowance to be prorated by month for probationary employees. 
We also added certification payments with an employee that has additional 
certifications above job requirements to $27.00 per pay period and prorated 
for seasonal employees to $13.50 per pay period.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BID AWARD-
Youth Recreation 
Grant 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Collective 
Bargaining 
Agreement-
Teamsters Union 
Local No. 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 6 

Councilman Shepard motioned to approve the 2017-2019 Collective 
Bargaining Agreement, second by Councilman Lovering. Councilman 
Petersen asked the approximate dollar amount and how the increase will be 
funded. Nicosia replied the Teamsters are in the water, sewer and street funds 
so they are paid with user fees and assessments, with the increase of 
approximately $12,000 per year funded without an increase in those funds. 
 
Council voting as follows. AYES: Petersen, Piper, Shepard, Fisher, Lovering 
and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Karper. 
 
 
ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS: 
A. RESOLUTION # 1726 - A Resolution of the City Council of the City of 
Columbia Falls, Montana, Approving the Sale of Lot Three of Cedar Creek 
South Subdivision, Flathead County, Montana 

 
City Manager Nicosia said this was a cash offer to the City for $89,000, 
representing the last of the CCS lots to sell and staff recommends approval. 
Councilman Petersen asked where the funds go. Nicosia said they go into the 
Cedar Creek Trust Fund.  
 
Councilman Fisher motioned to approve Resolution #1726, second by 
Councilman Lovering with Council voting as follows. AYES: Piper, Shepard, 
Fisher, Lovering, Petersen and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Karper. 
 
B. RESOLUTION # 1727 - A Resolution of the City Council of Columbia Falls, 
Montana, Amending Fund 2394 Building Code Enforcement Fund Budget 
Appropriations for the Fiscal Year 2015-2016. 
 
City Manager Nicosia said this resolution request is to amend the building 
code enforcement budget for actual activity. 
 
Councilman Shepard motioned to approve Resolution #1727, second by 
councilman Piper with Council voting as follows. AYES: Shepard, Fisher, 
Lovering Petersen, Piper and Barnhart. NOES: None. ABSENT: Karper 
 
B. First Reading – ORDINANCE #764 - An Ordinance of the City Council of 
the City of Columbia Falls, Montana, Changing The Zoning Classification 
From CSAG-10 Suburban Agricultural To CR-1 Suburban Residential For 
Certain Property in the Columbia Falls Zoning District, Described as Lot 1 of 
Subdivision #193 Located in Section 20, Township 30 North, Range 20 West, 
P.M.M., Flathead County, Montana, More Particularly Described as 3985 
Columbia Falls Stage Road. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION 
#1726-Approving 
the sale of Lot 3 of 
Cedar Creek South 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION 
#1727 Amending 
the Building Code 
Enforcement Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FIRST READING 
ORDINANCE 
#764 -Zone Change 
Giddeon 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 7 

Councilman Shepard motioned to approve the First Reading of Ordinance 
#764, second by Councilman Lovering and the motion passed with 
Councilman Piper recusing. 
 
 
REPORTS/BUSINESS FROM MAYOR & COUNCIL: 
Councilman Fisher reported their baby boy has arrived early. 
Councilman Lovering has had comments on weeds around town. Nicosia said 
the weed letters are in the mail and we are currently working on the issue.  
Councilman Shepard reminded Council about the car show Wednesday July 
27th at Marantette Park, adding the American Legion Post is cooking burgers  
and hot dogs during the car show with dinner proceeds going toward the 
rebuilding of the grandstands at the ball field.  
Shepard said he attended the meeting with Senator Tester, along with Mayor 
Barnhart and Susan Nicosia. The main discussion was on the Weyerhaeuser 
facilities shut down in Columbia Falls. 
Councilman Petersen said he was concerned with communication from the 
City Manager on a recent termination and he believes there should be a 
committee formed as a conduit for communication.  City Attorney Breck said 
the council can create a committee, in compliance with City ordinance, 
however the state statute on the public’s right to know includes personnel 
items unless the individual’s right to privacy exceeds the public’s right to 
know.  Mayor Barnhart recommended putting the committee idea on a future 
agenda for further discussion.  
Councilman Piper said he was disgusted with Weyerhaeuser’s decision to 
shut down the lumber mill, but noted that they may be donating something to 
the grandstand rebuilding.  Piper said he was not a fan of the paving the 
North Fork Road to Camas Creek in the past but now may be in favor.  
Mayor asked Fire Chief Hagen if the weeds are at a height that they are a fire 
danger. Discussion followed on the weed ordinance requirements and 
process. 
   
Mayor Barnhart said sometimes as elected officials we need to be reminded to 
not send group emails.  Councilman Lovering asked can I send emails to the 
City Manager.  Mayor said yes that is alright but not in group emails.  
 
REPORTS/BUSINESS FROM CITY ATTORNEY: 
None. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORTS FROM  
MAYOR AND 
COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT FROM 
CITY ATTORNEY 

CITY MANAGER: 
The street signs for the streets with newly adopted parking restrictions have 
been ordered and will be put up as soon as they get in.  
The weekend of July 22-24 the Fresh Life Church is holding their annual 
Blitzkrieg weekend and has volunteered to work in some of the City parks 

 
CITY MANAGER 
REPORT 



CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

HELD JULY 18, 2016 

 
July 18, 2016   Page 8 

before Heritage Days.  
 
A.  INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE/REPORTS -  
           A. INFORMATIONAL CORRESPONDENCE - List available for Review 

           B. REPORTS- 
                a. Finance – June Preliminary 
              b. Police – June Activity 
              c. Court – March – June quarter activity 
              d. Fire – Jan – June Activity   
 
 

CORRESPONDEN
CE/REPORTS 

ADJOURN: Upon motion duly made by Councilman Fisher and seconded by 
Councilman Lovering and the meeting adjourned at  8:35 p.m. 

 
ADJOURN 
 

 
 
      ____________________________ 
      Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED BY COUNCIL ACTION: August 1, 2016 
 
 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 1 

 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
between  

THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 

and 

THE CITY OF WHITEFISH 

 

 The CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, hereinafter referred to as “COLUMBIA FALLS” 
a municipal corporation duly formed and authorized pursuant to Montana state law and the 
CITY OF WHITEFISH, hereinafter referred to as “WHITEFISH” a municipal corporation duly 
formed and authorized pursuant to Montana state law hereby enter into an agreement as set forth 
below. 
 

RECITALS 

 
WHEREAS,   Title 7, Chapter 11, Part 1, M.C.A., known as the “Interlocal Cooperation Act,” 

permits governmental units to make the most efficient use of their powers by 
enabling them to cooperate with other local governmental units on a basis of 
mutual advantage and thereby to provide services and facilities in a manner and 
pursuant to forms of governmental organization that will accord best with 
geographic, economic, population, and other factors influencing the needs and 
development of local communities;  

 
WHEREAS,    said Act provides that an Interlocal agreement may be authorized and approved by 

the governing body of each party to said contract;  
 
WHEREAS,   COLUMBIA FALLS is a municipal corporation of the State of Montana located 

within Flathead County, Montana and is duly organized and in existence pursuant 
to the terms of MCA Title 7 Chapter 3 Part 43;  

 
WHEREAS,   WHITEFISH is a municipal corporation of the State of Montana located within 

Flathead County, Montana and is duly organized and in existence pursuant to the 
terms of MCA Title 7 Chapter 3 Part 43;  

 
WHEREAS  COLUMBIA FALLS requires professional services to be performed in 

connection with Police Department Administrative services on a temporary basis;  
 
WHEREAS, WHITEFISH represents that its municipal Police Department staff is fully 

qualified and capable to perform such services and is in compliance with federal 
and state law relating to the provisions of such service; and, 

 
WHEREAS, COLUMBIA FALLS desires to have WHITEFISH perform such professional 

services, and WHITEFISH is willing to do so. 
 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 2 

NOW THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED by and between COLUMBIA FALLS and 
WHITEFISH, each a local government agency of the State of Montana, and pursuant to MCA 7-

11-104, that it is to their mutual benefit to adopt this Interlocal Agreement as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK OR SERVICES; COMPENSATION: 
 

A. WHITEFISH shall furnish professional services, obligations, and 
responsibilities under this Agreement, more particularly set forth in Exhibit 
"A," Scope of Service, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

 
B. COLUMBIA FALLS shall pay for services from time to time, as set forth in 

Exhibit "B," Compensation Schedule, attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by this reference, in an amount not to exceed $15,000.00. 

 
C. COLUMBIA FALLS shall pay WHITEFISH within thirty (30) days following 

receipt from WHITEFISH and approval by COLUMBIA FALLS of invoices 
for the administrative services performed.     

 
D. WHITEFISH may select the time and place of performance hereunder, 

provided, however, that access to COLUMBIA FALLS documents, records, 
and the like, if needed by WHITEFISH, shall be readily available. 

 

E. WHITEFISH shall be solely responsible for any retirement system 
contributions, the submission of any employer reports, and / or the furnishing 
of any additional information under MCA 19-2-506 that may be required as a 
result of the services provided or compensation paid hereunder.  

 
 
2. COORDINATION AND ORGANIZATION: 
 

A. WHITEFISH shall coordinate its performance with the COLUMBIA FALL's 
Project Manager.  WHITEFISH shall advise and inform COLUMBIA 
FALLS's Project Manager of the work in progress on the Project in sufficient 
detail so as to assist COLUMBIA FALLS's Project Manager in making 
presentations and in holding meetings for the exchange of information.  
Together, the WHITEFISH Project Manager and the COLUMBIA FALLS 
Project Manager shall be responsible for administering the cooperative 
undertaking created by this Agreement. 

 
The designated Project Manager for COLUMBIA FALLS is: 

Susan M Nicosia 
City Manager 
130 6th Street West 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 3 

Columbia Falls, Montana 59912 
406-892-4384 

 
The designated Project Manager for WHITEFISH is: 

Mike Ferda 
Asst. Police Chief 
275 Flathead Ave. 
Whitefish, MT 59937 
406-863-2423 

 
B. The parties acknowledge that a substantial inducement to COLUMBIA 

FALLS for entering this Agreement was and is the reputation, knowledge, and 
skills of WHITEFISH’s key employee Mike Ferda.  COLUMBIA FALLS 
shall have the right to approve any person proposed by WHITEFISH to 
replace such key employee. 

 
3.  FINANCE OF PROJECT AND MAINTENANCE OF BUDGET:  Financing of 
the Scope of Work and the corresponding Compensation hereunder shall be 
accomplished by and through General Fund budget authority. The budget for 
COLUMBIA FALLS’ payment of the services hereunder shall be as authorized in the 
2016-17 FY Budget as adopted by the Columbia Falls City Council.  
 
4. INSURANCE:  COLUMBIA FALLS acknowledges that WHITEFISH has the same 
levels of insurance coverage through the Montana Municipal Interlocal Authority as 
COLUMBIA FALLS and as such provides the same degree of insurance protection as 
would exist if COLUMBIA FALLS was utilizing its own personnel for the services.  
WHITEFISH shall comply with all applicable requirements of Montana's Workers' 
Compensation Act, and the Occupational Disease Act. 
 
5. INDEMNITY:  COLUMBIA FALLS agrees to defend, indemnify and hold 
WHITEFISH harmless of and from any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, 
proceedings or judgments based upon the negligence or intentional acts of COLUMBIA 
FALLS employees in its performance or failure to perform the contracted services. 
 
WHITEFISH agrees to defend, indemnify and hold COLUMBIA FALLS harmless of and 
from any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, proceedings or judgments based upon 
the performance of the administrative services hereunder by WHITEFISH’s employee(s). 

 
6. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING:  This Agreement contemplates the 
personal services of WHITEFISH and WHITEFISH's employees, and the parties 
acknowledge that a substantial inducement to COLUMBIA FALLS for entering this 
Agreement was and is the professional reputation and competence of WHITEFISH and 
WHITEFISH's employees.  WHITEFISH shall not assign its rights or delegate its duties 
hereunder, or any interest herein, or any portion hereof, without the prior written consent 
of COLUMBIA FALLS. WHITEFISH shall not subcontract any portion of the 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 4 

performance required hereunder without the prior written consent of the Columbia Falls 
City Manager or her designee, nor substitute an approved subcontractor without said 
prior written consent to the substitution.  Nothing stated in this Paragraph 5 shall prevent 
WHITEFISH from employing as many employees as WHITEFISH deems necessary for 
performance of this Agreement. 
 
7. CONFLICT OF INTEREST:  WHITEFISH, by executing this Agreement, certifies 
that, at the time WHITEFISH executes this Agreement and for its duration, WHITEFISH 
does not and will not perform services for any other client which would create a conflict, 
whether monetary, scheduling, or otherwise, as between the interests of COLUMBIA 
FALLS hereunder and the interests of such other client. 
 
8. MATERIALS:  WHITEFISH shall furnish all labor and supervision, supplies, 
materials, tools, machinery, equipment, appliances, transportation, and services necessary 
to or used in the performance of WHITEFISH's obligations. 
 
9. OWNERSHIP OF DATA:  All materials, information and data prepared, developed, 
or assembled by WHITEFISH or furnished to WHITEFISH in connection with this 
Agreement, including but not limited to documents, estimates, studies, graphs, charts, 
computer disks, computer source documentation, samples, models, reports, summaries, 
notes, information, material, and memorandum ("Data") shall be the exclusive property 
of COLUMBIA FALLS.  Data shall be given to COLUMBIA FALLS, and COLUMBIA 
FALLS shall have the unrestricted right to use and disclose the Data in any manner for 
use in connection with the project for which it is intended without payment of further 
compensation to WHITEFISH.  Copies of Data may be retained by WHITEFISH but 
WHITEFISH warrants that Data shall not be made available to any person or entity for 
use without the prior written approval of COLUMBIA FALLS.  Said warranty shall 
survive termination of this Agreement for ten (10) years.  It is agreed that WHITEFISH's 
referral to Data in general terms for the purpose of listing past professional experience in 
future marketing endeavors is not a violation of this warranty. 
 
10. CONFIDENTIALITY:  WHITEFISH shall keep the Data confidential and shall not 
disclose the Data or use the Data directly or indirectly other than in the course of services 
provided hereunder during this Agreement and for ten (10) years following expiration or 
termination of this Agreement.  In addition, WHITEFISH shall keep confidential all 
information whether written, oral, or visual, obtained by any means whatsoever in the 
course of WHITEFISH's performance hereunder for the same period of time.  
WHITEFISH shall not disclose any or all of the Data to any third party, nor use it for 
WHITEFISH's own benefit or the benefit of others except for the purpose of this 
Agreement. 

 
11. CHANGES AND EXTRA SERVICES: 
 

A. COLUMBIA FALLS may make changes within the general scope of this 
Agreement.  Change orders shall be in writing and shall state the dollar 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 5 

amount of the change, the method of payment, any adjustment in the time for 
performance and, when negotiated prices are involved, shall provide for 
WHITEFISH's signature indicating acceptance.  If WHITEFISH estimates 
that any change will cause an increase or decrease in the cost or time required 
for performance, WHITEFISH shall so notify COLUMBIA FALLS of that 
fact.  Any notification by WHITEFISH shall be provided within ten (10) 
calendar days from the date of receipt by WHITEFISH of the change order.  
In addition, WHITEFISH shall notify COLUMBIA FALLS when 
WHITEFISH identifies a condition which may change the initial scope of 
work or services within ten (10) days of identifying such a condition.  All 
change orders shall be deemed part of this Agreement. 
 

B. COLUMBIA FALLS may request in a change order that WHITEFISH 
perform extra services not covered by the scope of work or services, and 
WHITEFISH shall perform such extra services.  COLUMBIA FALLS shall 
pay for such extra services as specified in the change order.  COLUMBIA 
FALLS shall not be liable for payment of such extra services nor shall 
WHITEFISH be obligated to perform such extra services unless and until the 
change order is signed by both parties.  Extra services shall not exceed 
twenty-five percent (25%) of the contract price, as set out in Exhibit "B," 
without prior approval of the COLUMBIA FALLS City Council. 
 
 

12. TERMINATION: 
 

A. Either party may terminate this Agreement by giving ten (10) days' prior 
written notice to the other party in the event of substantial failure by such 
other party to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through 
no fault of the terminating party. 
 

B. COLUMBIA FALLS shall have the right to terminate this Agreement for any 
reason or no reason at any time by giving ten (10) days' prior written notice to 
WHITEFISH. 
 

C. In the event of termination under Paragraph 9(A) or Paragraph 9(B), the 
ten (10) days shall run from the date of deposit in the mail or the date on 
which personal service is obtained, whichever first occurs.  Further, in the 
event of termination under Paragraph 9(A) or Paragraph 9(B), COLUMBIA 
FALLS shall pay WHITEFISH for services satisfactorily performed and costs 
incurred up to effective date of termination for which WHITEFISH has not 
been previously paid.  The procedures for payment in Paragraph 1(C) with 
regard to invoices shall apply.  On the effective date of termination, 
WHITEFISH shall deliver to COLUMBIA FALLS all Data developed or 
accumulated in the performance of this Agreement, whether in draft or final 
form, or in process, without regard to whether or not WHITEFISH has 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 6 

received from COLUMBIA FALLS all compensation that WHITEFISH 
claims is due. 
 

13. NONDISCRIMINATION:  WHITEFISH agrees that all hiring by WHITEFISH of 
persons performing this Agreement will be on the basis of merit and qualification and 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, political ideas, sex, age, 
marital status, physical or mental disability, or national origin.  WHITEFISH agrees to 
comply with all applicable federal, state, and municipal laws concerning the prohibition 
of discrimination. 
 
14. AMENDMENT:  This Agreement, including all exhibits, shall not be amended, nor 
any provision or breach hereof waived, except in writing signed by the parties, which 
expressly refers to this Agreement. 
 
15. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY:  This Agreement is for the exclusive benefit 
of the parties, does not constitute a third-party beneficiary agreement, and may not be 
relied upon or enforced by a third party. 
 
16. GOVERNING LAW:  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed pursuant 
to the laws of the State of Montana. 
 
17. FORUM:  Any legal proceeding to enforce or interpret this Agreement or to protect 
or establish any rights or remedies hereunder shall be maintained only in the courts in the 
County of Flathead, Montana. 
 
18. NECESSARY ACTS:  Each party to this Agreement agrees to perform any further 
acts and execute and deliver any further documents that may be reasonably necessary to 
carry out the provisions of this Agreement. 
 
19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement, including all exhibits, constitutes the 
entire understanding between the parties and supersedes all other agreements, whether 
oral or written, with respect to the subject matter herein. 
 
20. SEVERABILITY:  If any portion of this Agreement is held to be void or 
unenforceable, the balance thereof shall continue in effect. 
 
21. NOTICES:  Any notice required hereunder or desired to be given by either party 
shall be in writing and personally served or deposited in the U.S. Postal Service, first 
class, postage prepaid, addressed to WHITEFISH at its address stated herein, and to 
COLUMBIA FALLS at the “City of Columbia Falls, Attention:  Columbia Falls City 
Manager, 130 6th ST West, Columbia Falls, Montana 59912.”  Notice of change of 
address shall be given in the same manner as stated herein for other notices.  The notice 
shall be deemed given on the date deposited in the mail or on the date personal service is 
obtained, whichever first occurs. 
 



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 7 

22. WAIVER:  The acceptance of any services by COLUMBIA FALLS or the payment 
of any money by WHITEFISH shall not operate as a waiver of any provision of this 
Agreement, or of any right to damages or indemnity stated in this Agreement.  The 
waiver of any breach of this Agreement shall not constitute a waiver of any other or 
subsequent breach of this Agreement. 
 
23. AUTHORITY:  Each party represents that it has full power and authority to enter 
into and perform this Agreement and that the person signing this Agreement on behalf of 
each party has been properly authorized and empowered to sign this Agreement. 
 
24. EFFECTIVE DATE:  The effective date of this agreement shall be upon the 
execution of this document as authorized by the governing bodies of each party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement on the 

dates set forth opposite their signatures. 
 
 

CITY OF WHITEFISH, CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS 
 a municipal corporation  a municipal corporation 

 
 
 

By:   By:   
Charles C. Stearns  Susan M. Nicosia 
Whitefish City Manager  Columbia Falls City Manager 
   

 
DATED:   DATED:   

 
 

EXHIBIT "A" Scope of work or services, including proposed timeline 
 

EXHIBIT "B" Compensation schedule and procedure for reimbursement of expenses 
 
  



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 8 

EXHIBIT A 
Scope of Services 

 
1. Provide administrative personnel for oversight, guidance, case management and auditing 

areas of police function for the Columbia Falls Police Department during the term the 
City is without an appointed Police Chief. The administrative personnel provided by the 
City of Whitefish will work directly with the City’s senior staff member, Sergeant Sean 
Murphy, in coordinating the administrative functions and oversight of all department 
personnel.  The administrative personnel will report directly to the Columbia Falls City 
Manager, as needed.  The Scope of Services may be amended by mutual consent of both 
parties as described above based on the needs of the Columbia Falls Police Department. 
 

  



________________________________ 
Interlocal Agreement – Page 9 

EXHIBIT B 
Compensation Schedule 

 
1. The City of Whitefish will be reimbursed at the rate of $54.74/hour for 8 hours/week 
for an estimated 12-16 week time period. The City of Whitefish will invoice the City of 
Columbia Falls for the actual hours spent providing the professional administrative 
services. It is anticipated that the hours spent at the beginning of this agreement may 
exceed the 8 hours/week.  Additional services and/or time worked will be approved as 
indicated in the agreement. 











































































 
 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, that the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana, will hold public hearings beginning on August 1, 2016 at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Columbia Falls City Hall, 130-6th Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana, for the 
following purposes: 
 

Preliminary Budget 
Presentation and consideration of the preliminary budget for fiscal year beginning July 1, 
2016 and ending June 30, 2017. This hearing will be continued until final adoption of the 
budget. 
  

Special Assessments 
Consideration of the adoption of the Street Lighting District and Street Maintenance 
District assessments for FY2016/2017. Council will hear any objections to the final 
adoption of the resolution levying special assessments for FY 2016/2017. Special 
Assessments are estimated as follows: 
 
  Street Lighting District  $  40,000 
 
  Street Maintenance District  $301,000 
 
Individual property payment schedules are available for inspection ten (10) days from 
this notice, in the office of the City Clerk, 130 6th Street West, Columbia Falls, Montana, 
during regular hours Monday through Friday, 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM. 
 

Permissive Medical Levy 
Consideration of adoption on the proposed tax levy to fund health insurance premium 
contributions for group benefits beyond the amount of contributions in effect on June 30, 
1999. The actual mills for consideration will be made available upon receipt of the 
certified tax valuation for the year. 
 
Taxpayers are encouraged to attend the hearings and give written or oral comments on 
any or all of the budget-related items. Written comments may be mailed to the City 
Clerk, 130 6th Street West, Room A, Columbia Falls, Montana, 59912. Questions 
regarding the proposed items can be made by contacting City Manager Susan Nicosia at 
892-4391. 
 
DATED THIS 18th DAY OF JULY, 2016 
 
s/Barb Staaland, City Clerk 
 
Publish:  Wednesday July 20th and Wednesday July 27th 



RES1728 

 

 

 
 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1728 
 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA, APPROVING THE SALE OF LOT FOUR OF CEDAR CREEK NORTH 

SUBDIVISION, FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA. 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Columbia Falls has reviewed a (Land) Buy-Sell 

Agreement dated July 26, 2016, for the sale of the following described real 
property to Dinnie Blair: 

 
Lot Four (4) of Cedar Creek North Subdivision, according to the 
map or plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the Clerk 

and Recorder, Flathead County, Montana. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

 Section One:  That Susan Nicosia, the City Manager, is hereby 
authorized to execute any and all documents necessary to effectuate the sale of 
said real property to Dinnie Blair. 

 
 Section Two:  That this Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon its passage and approval by the City Council. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 

MONTANA THIS 1ST DAY OF AUGUST, 2016, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS 
FOLLOWS:  

 
 AYES:   
 

 NOES:  
 
 ABSENT:   

 

_____________________ 

City Clerk 

 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS 1st 

DAY OF AUGUST 2016. 
 

_______________________ 

Mayor 
 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________ 

City Clerk 

 



 
 ORDINANCE NO.764 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM CSAG-10 SUBURBAN AGRICULTURAL 
TO CR-1 SUBURBAN RESIDENTIAL FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY IN THE COLUMBIA FALLS 
ZONING DISTRICT, DESCRIBED AS LOT 1 OF SUBDIVISION #193 LOCATED IN SECTION 
20, TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 20 WEST, P.M.M., FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA, 
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 3985 COLUMBIA FALLS STAGE ROAD. 
 

WHEREAS, William T. Giddeon, the purported owner of the real property, has 
requested a zone change  from CSAG-10 Suburban Agriculture to CR-1 Suburban 
Residential for the property described as Lot 1 of Subdivision #193, according to the plat 
thereof on file and of record in the office of the Clerk and Recorder, Flathead County, 
Montana; 
 

WHEREAS, said request was considered by the Columbia Falls City-County 
Planning Board in a public hearing at its regularly scheduled meeting on June 14, 2016, 
and the Commission recommended approval of said change in zoning classification; and 
 
  WHEREAS, said zone change request was considered by the Columbia Falls 
Planning Office in Report #CZC-16-01, dated May 27, 2016, wherein it was recommended 
that said request be approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing on said zone change was held by the City Council of the City 
of Columbia Falls, Montana, at its regular meeting on Monday, July 18, 2016, after said 
hearing was advertised according to law; and at said hearing on said date, the City Council 
considered the recommendation of the Planning Board, the report of the Columbia Falls 
Planning Office, together with any and all comments filed or voiced with respect to said 
change; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the zoning change is in the best 
interest of the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section One.   Findings of Fact:  That the Columbia Falls Planning Office Report 
#CZC-16-01, dated May 27, 2016, is hereby adopted by the Council as findings of fact with 
respect to said zone change request. 
 

Section Two.   Change in Zoning Classification:  That the zoning classification is 
hereby changed from CSAG-10 Suburban Agricultural to CR-1 Suburban Residential for 
certain real property more particularly described as Lot 1 of Subdivision #193, located in 
Section 20, T30N, R20W, P.M.M., Flathead County. 
 

Section Three.  Inconsistent Provisions:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 

Section Four.  Severability:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 
provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 
 

Section Five.   Effective Date:   This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) 
days after its final passage and approval by the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA THIS 1st DAY OF AUGUST, 2016, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 
 

AYES:  
 

NOES: 
 

ABSENT:  
 



__________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS 1st DAY OF 
AUGUST, 2016. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 



FIRST READING 

  ORD 765 

 
 ORDINANCE NO.765 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
CHANGING THE ZONING CLASSIFICATION FROM CB-2 (GENERAL BUSINESS) AND CR-4 
(URBAN RESIDENTIAL) TO CRA-1RESIDENTIAL APARTMENT FOR CERTAIN PROPERTY 
IN THE COLUMBIA FALLS ZONING DISTRICT, DESCRIBED AS  TRACT B OF THE 
CRESCENT AMENDED PLAT EXCLUDING MDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY AND ASSESSORS 
TRACTS 1A AND 1AD ALL LOCATED IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 30 NORTH, RANGE 20 
WEST, P.M.M., FLATHEAD COUNTY, MONTANA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 
673 8TH AVENUE E.N. AND 810 RAILROAD STREET, COLUMBIA FALLS. 
 

WHEREAS, Patrick W. Rose, the purported owner of the real property, has 
requested a zone change from CB-2 General Business to CRA-1 Residential Apartment for 
the property described as Tract B of the Crescent Amended Plat Excluding MDOT right-of-
way, according to the plat thereof on file and of record in the office of the Clerk and 
Recorder, Flathead County, Montana, more particularly described as 673 8th Ave E.N., 
Columbia Falls, MT; 

 
WHEREAS, Salvador Maldonado, the purported owner of the real property, has 

requested a zone change  from CR-4 Urban Residential to CRA-1Residential Apartment for 
the property described as Assessors Tracts 1A and 1AD, Section 9, Township 30 North, 
Range 20 West, P.M.M., Flathead County, Montana, more particularly described as 810 
Railroad Street, Columbia Falls, MT; 

 
 

WHEREAS, said request was considered by the Columbia Falls City-County 
Planning Board in a public hearing at its regularly scheduled meeting on July 12, 2016, 
and the Commission recommended approval of said change in zoning classification; and 
 
  WHEREAS, said zone change request was considered by the Columbia Falls 
Planning Office in Report #CZC-16-02, dated June 30, 2016, wherein it was recommended 
that said request be approved; and 
 

WHEREAS, a hearing on said zone change was held by the City Council of the City 
of Columbia Falls, Montana, at its regular meeting on Monday, August 1, 2016, after said 
hearing was advertised according to law; and at said hearing on said date, the City Council 
considered the recommendation of the Planning Board, the report of the Columbia Falls 
Planning Office, together with any and all comments filed or voiced with respect to said 
change; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the zoning change is in the best 
interest of the City. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section One.   Findings of Fact:  That the Columbia Falls Planning Office Report 
#CZC-16-02, dated June 30, 2016, is hereby adopted by the Council as findings of fact 
with respect to said zone change request. 
 

Section Two.   Change in Zoning Classification:  That the zoning classification is 
hereby changed from CB-2 General Business and CR-4 Urban Residential to CRA-1 
Residential Apartment for certain real property more particularly described as Tract B of 
the Crescent Amended Plat Excluding MDOT right-of-way, according to the plat thereof on 
file and of record in the office of the Clerk and Recorder, Flathead County, Montana, more 
particularly described as 673 8th Ave E.N., Columbia Falls, MT and property described as 
Assessors Tracts 1A and 1AD, Section 9, Township 30 North, Range 20 West, P.M.M., 
Flathead County, Montana, more particularly described as 810 Railroad Street, Columbia 
Falls, MT; 
 

Section Three.  Inconsistent Provisions:  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 



FIRST READING 

  ORD 765 

Section Four.  Severability:  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any 
provision of this Ordinance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions 
or applications of this Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision. 
 

Section Five.   Effective Date:   This Ordinance shall become effective thirty (30) 
days after its final passage and approval by the City Council of the City of Columbia Falls, 
Montana.  
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, 
MONTANA THIS ______DAY OF AUGUST, 2016, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 
 

AYES:  
 

NOES: 
 

ABSENT:  
 

__________________________________ 
City Clerk 

 
 

APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS _______ DAY 
OF AUGUST, 2016. 
 
 

__________________________________ 
Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
City Clerk 



Return to  
City of Columbia Falls 
130 6th Street West 
Columbia Falls, MT 59912 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1729 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA, 
APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT BY PATRICK W. ROSE TO 
CONVERT THE FORMER CONVENIENCE STORE AND GAS STATION INTO A THREE PLEX 
APARTMENT AND MAINTAIN THE EXISTING MANAGERS UNIT ON TRACT B OF THE 
CRESCENT AMENDED PLAT EXCLUDING MDOT RIGHT-OF-WAY IN SECTION 9, 
TOWNSHIP 20 NORTH, RANGE 20 WEST, P.M.M., FLATHEAD COUNTY. 
 
 WHEREAS, an Application been filed with the City by Patrick W. Rose requesting 
permission to convert the former convenience store and gas station property into a three plex 
apartment and maintain the existing managers unit to remain as the fourth residential unit 
on the property; 
 
 WHEREAS, the property is currently zoned CB-2 General Business but the applicant 
has also applied for a zone change to CRA-1 Residential Apartment which would allow, with 
conditional use, the proposed apartment complex; 
 
 WHEREAS, multi-family dwellings are a conditional use pursuant to 18.332.030 in the 
Columbia Falls Municipal Code; 
 
 WHEREAS, said requested conditional use permit was considered by the Columbia Falls 
City-County Planning Board at its regular meeting on July 12, 2016, and said Board 
recommended granting the proposed conditional use permit, with certain conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, said conditional use permit was considered by the City Council of the City 
of Columbia Falls, Montana, at a public hearing held during the Council's regularly 
scheduled meeting on Monday, August 1, 2016, pursuant to public notice as required by 
law, and all comments filed or voiced concerning said requested conditional use permit 
having been considered by the City Council, along with the recommendation of the Planning 
Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section One.  Findings of Fact. That the City Council specifically finds that the 
conditions set forth in Section 18.332.030 of the Columbia Falls Municipal Code are 
accurately evaluated as set forth in Conditional Use Report #CCU-16-01 of the Columbia 
Falls Planning Office, and the City Council hereby adopts said report as findings of fact in 
support of the requested conditional use permit.  
 
 Section Two.  Permit Approved.  That based upon the findings of Section One of this 
Resolution, the Application by Patrick W. Rose to convert the former convenience store and 
Gas Station into a three plex apartment and maintain the existing managers unit on Tract B 
of the Crescent Amended Plat excluding MDOT right-of-way in Section 9, Township 20 North, 
Range 20 West, P.M.M., Flathead County, is hereby approved. 
 

 Section Three.  Conditional Use Permit.  That the conditional use permit is 
approved, specifically contingent upon the conditions set forth on Exhibit "A" attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference.  

 
 Section Four.  Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon its passage and approval by the City Council. 
            
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS 1st 
DAY OF AUGUST, 2016, THE COUNCIL VOTING AS FOLLOWS: 



 
 AYES:  
 
 NOES:   
  
 ABSENT:  
  
       _______________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF COLUMBIA FALLS, MONTANA THIS 1st DAY OF AUGUST, 
2016. 
 
       _______________________________ 
       MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
CITY CLERK     
 
 
    
 
      EXHIBIT "A" 
 

1. The applicant shall develop the project as proposed, except as modified by these Conditions.   
2. The applicant shall pave all parking areas and driveways. 
3. The applicant shall provide an engineered drainage plans to address on site storm water 

disposal for the new impervious surface.  This plan will need to be accepted by the City prior 
to issuance of a building permit. 

4. The applicant shall either store individual refuse containers indoors or shall fully enclose with 
a sight obscuring fence materials the shared garbage container. 

5. All sewer and water hookups shall be built according to plans and specifications approved by 
the City of Columbia Falls and meeting the City Standards for Public Works Improvements 
and the Montana Public Works Standard Specifications. 

6. All conditions provided above and all improvements necessary for the operation of an 
apartment complex must be in place prior to the occupancy of the complex.  Any elements 
such as landscaping not finished prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit, may be 
bonded for with signed improvements agreement approved by the City Manager for an 
amount not less than 125% of the cost of the remaining improvement. 

7. The applicant shall remove the asphalt as indicated on the landscape plan and replace with 
grass and/or other groundcover and landscaping. 

8. Signage shall comply with Section 18.438.080 of the Columbia Falls Zoning Regulations and 
all of the existing signage advertising the Stop and Shop shall be removed 

9. A $1,000 payment for the single parcel will be made to the City of Columbia Falls prior to the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy for improvements specifically to Columbus Park or 
the baseball park just west of the project. 

10. The applicant shall landscape the property in accordance with a plan approved by the City 
Planning Staff/City Manager. 

11. The Conditional Use Permit shall terminate 18 months from the date of issuance if 
commencement of the authorized activity has not begun. 

 



 

 

July 29, 2016 

To:  Mayor & Council 

From: City Manager Nicosia 

RE:  Manager’s Update 

1.  Floodplain Permit to be revised – The City recently applied for and received a floodplain 
development permit pursuant to City and state requirement to allow 500 cubic yards of clean fill 
on Lots 6 – 10, Block 48, Columbia Falls Original. Unfortunately, the original permit request 
had a typo, changing the needed 5,000 cubic yards to 500 cubic yards. To comply with the 
requirements, the City must send out new notices and issue a new permit.  

2. The consent agenda includes the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Whitefish for Police 
Administrative Services. Whitefish has graciously provided the City of Columbia Falls with 
administrative support by their Asst. Chief, Mike Ferda. Mr. Ferda will attend the Monday, 
August 1st council meeting so he can be formally introduced to the Council. Mr. Ferda is 
working with Sergeant Murphy and me on all department administrative matters. This interlocal 
will work very well for the City.  The Police Chief position advertisement has gone out and we 
will be accepting applications through the month of August.  

3.  The new playground equipment installs are taking place and should be completed in the near 
future. The new play structure at Horine Park was completed on Tuesday of this week: 

 



The Pinewood structure will be installed as soon as possible as well as the parent/tot swings. The 
new “merry go round” was installed at Marantette and is already getting considerable use. The 
water fountain at Claire Park was recently vandalized, broken completely off the wall mount. We 
are taking advantage of the fountain replacement by replacing the broken fountain with a 
fountain that can be used by people and dogs. The fountain at Horine Park, also in need of 
upgrade, will be replaced by people/dog fountain.   

4. Monday will include the preliminary budget hearings – riveting power point with graphs (for 
Councilman Karper).  I anticipate public comment on Street Maintenance Assessment from 
Steve Duffy, on behalf of the Catholic Church. During the Public Works committee meeting, we 
discussed the request by Mr. Duffy for a waiver/break in fee along with the overall street 
maintenance and the recommendation was to leave the current system in place and funding at the 
same level. Currently, the only adjustment to the square footage assessment is the adjustment for 
a single family residence on a lot larger than half-acre in size.  As properties have been 
subdivided and developed, the numbers of residentially zoned parcels qualifying for the 
reduction have been greatly reduced. The City Attorney has reminded the City that any 
waiver/fee reduction must be evenly applied to all similar tax payers. There are over 75 exempt 
properties, not counting city properties, with an “E” in the assessor number. As the state may or 
may not assign an exempt property with an “E,” that may not include all tax exempt properties in 
the City. Of those designated with an “E,” 16 are in the name of a church.  The 2015-16 FY 
square footage rate was $0.00767/sq. foot with the city-wide assessment at $301,000, billed to  

 

2,208 property owners. The Catholic Church owns a large parcel of property, just less than 6 
acres, on which they were assessed $1,982.26 for street maintenance.  

 

5. Heritage Days – we worked with MDOT to slow traffic down on Hwy 2 East – much longer 
25 MPH zone. The city also purchased “event ahead” signs to work with MDOT on our larger 
community events. See you out and about this weekend. The car show and American Legion 
dinner both doubled in size on Weds. Night.   




	August  1 2016 -  Final Agenda
	Claims
	Payroll July 29 2016
	July 18, 2016 Minutes
	Columbia Falls - Whitefish Interlocal for Police Administration - jb rvsd.Whitefish revisions
	Notice of Public Hearing
	Staff rpt CZC 16-02
	Salvador map amendment
	Rose map amendment
	Staff rpt CCU 16-01
	Conditional use permit
	NOTICE OF budget hearings 16-17
	Res 1728 SaleCedarCreekNorthLot4
	Ord 764 Giddeon ZoneChange 2016
	Ord 765 Rose Maldonado ZoneChange 2016
	Resolution 1729 -Conditional Use Permit - Rose
	Aug 1 2016 mngr report
	Correspondence

